
Approved 10/22/2012 
 

1 
 

    
MEETING: 
 
DATE/ TIME: 

 
PRESENT: 
 
 
ABSENT: 
______________________  
 
MINUTES: 
Approve 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
Veterans Road Bridge 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Farmdale Road Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Eastern Bypass Update 
 
Wagonseller Road / Shady 
Lane Construction Update 
 
Bridge Damage / 
Allentown Road Bridge 
Repair 
 
 
Underground Storage 
Tank (UST) Discussion 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

l
I 
TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 
Monday, September 17, 2012 - 8:00 A.M. 
 
Chairman Sinn, Terry Von Boeckman, Mel Stanford, Jim Donahue, Nancy 
Proehl, Rosemary Palmer, and John Ackerman 
 
Jim Carius 
______________________________________________________         
  
MOTION BY CARIUS, SECOND BY VON BOECKMAN to approve the 
minutes of August 20, 2012.  MOTION CARRIED on voice vote. 
 
 
Mr. Anderson brought attention to the presentation of “before” and “after” 
pictures of Veterans Road Bridge provided by the resident engineer of the 
project, Mr. Paul Augspurger.  He stated the project cost $1.4 million which 
consisted of $1.1 million federal bridge funds, and the remainder was funded by 
County Bridge funds and Fondulac Township funds.  Mr. Anderson stated 
Freesen, R.A. Cullinan & Son’s sister company, was the contractor on the project 
and added that the project turned out nicely.  Mr. Anderson pointed out some 
aspects of the project such as the road relocation that took place and smoothing 
out a rail crossing on Bittersweet Rd.    
 
Mr. Anderson reminded the committee this project is by order of Illinois 
Commerce Commission to relocate part of the road, which is adjacent to 
Veterans Road Bridge, and the project will be constructed in 2013.  He stated the 
plans are very close to being finished, and it will be bid summer of 2013.  He 
reminded the committee that the project will eliminate two railroad crossings for 
public travel. 
 
Mr. Anderson said there is currently no update at this time.   
 
Mr. Anderson stated although this project is complete a ribbon cutting has been 
scheduled for October 3, 2012.   
 
Mr. Anderson stated the documentation for the damage and repair costs was sent 
to the insurance company, and the claim was approved.  However, a 
reimbursement check has not been received as of the meeting date, September 
17, 2012.  
 
Mr. Anderson reminded the committee the Highway Department has 
Underground Storage Tanks (UST) for fuel, and two Highway Department 
personnel just completed certification to oversee the UST facility.  In addition to 
obtaining licenses for the facility, other factors for the facility were brought to 
the surface during the certification process.  He reminded the committee that all 
tanks and piping will eventually have to be double-walled tanks, and our tanks 
are single-walled.  Mr. Anderson stated the Highway Department has reached out 
to two entities for quotes to replace and update the system.  Mr. Anderson stated 
the project needs to be kept in mind for budget reasons. 



Approved 10/22/2012 
 

2 
 

 
 
TRANSPORTATION 
COMMITTEE 
_____________________ 
 
 
 
 
Highway Budget Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
Manito Road Viaduct 
Discussion 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Grant Application for 
Mackinaw Shed 
Rehabilitation  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
____________________________________________________________ 
  
 Mr. Anderson stated he has contacted Mr. Michael Freilinger about the matter to 
try and create awareness about it since all County departments utilize the system. 
  
Mr. Anderson informed the committee that the Highway Department’s budget 
will be discussed at a meeting Wednesday, September 19, 2012.  He reminded 
the committee the Matching Tax fund budget will be rather high due to a couple 
projects where the Highway Department acts as the “bank.”  Centennial Drive, in 
Washington, is a PPUATS funded project, subject to reimbursement from the 
City of East Peoria and Fondulac Township.  The same matter is true for 
Farmdale Road except the reimbursement will be from Illinois Commerce 
Commission.  Mr. Anderson also mentioned budget concerns for overtime and 
fuel.  He stated he budgeted for the annual 3% increase, but he stated anything 
can happen with fuel prices and overtime in terms of the seasonal effects and 
construction projects. 
 
Mr. Anderson referred to a letter from IDOT in the meeting packet.  IDOT is 
planning an informational, public open house to solicit input for their next five 
years of projects.  He stated, with the recommendation of the committee, he 
would like to write a letter to get a discussion going with IDOT regarding the 
Manito Rd. and Route 29 railroad viaducts.  He stated they are so close together 
the project will very likely have to be completed at once.  Mr. Anderson stated 
the letter would include Tazewell County’s financial willingness to be involved 
in a feasibility study to figure out costs and any obstacles in a project as such.  
Mr. Ackerman suggested having other local agencies on board.  Mr. Anderson 
stated he talked to Maureen Addis with IDOT, and she suggested getting letters 
of support from the local agencies.  Mrs. Proehl stated that Mason County would 
likely support the idea as well since Manito Road is the gateway to their county.  
The committee’s approval was put forth. 
 
Mr. Anderson informed the committee of a $20,000 grant received from the 
capital bill with the help from Representative Sommer.  He stated he had to 
decide what to put the money toward, but wanted to keep it simple.  Mr. 
Anderson informed the committee of a storage shed owned by Tazewell County 
located in Mackinaw that is in the slow stages of deterioration.  He stated a new 
roof was put on the building a few years ago, and the grant will go toward new 
windows, siding, and other small repairs.  Mr. Ackerman inquired what the 
building was used for.  Mr. Anderson stated it is used to store equipment.  Mrs. 
Proehl inquired as to why the County has property in that location.  Mr. Dan Parr 
stated that at one time the maintenance operations for Tazewell County was 
decentralized, having buildings out in rural areas, and this building has been left 
since it is utilized and in a good location for the Highway Department.  
Chairman Sinn asked the general question of why we wanted to repair and keep 
such a building and property.  Mr. Anderson stated the Highway Department 
would like to keep the building as it is fully utilized, and there is already some 
equipment not able to fit into the current storage space we have available. 



Approved 10/22/2012 
 

3 
 

 
 
TRANSPORTATION 
COMMITTEE 
_____________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Shady Lane to “Excel 
Way” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RESOLUTION: 
 
 
 
 
Straub Lane & Scott’s 
Lane 
 
 
RESOLUTION: 
 
 
 
 
OTHER MATTERS: 
Next Month Salary 
Discussion 
 
Veterans Road Bridge Bill 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVAL OF BILLS: 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
____________________________________________________________ 
  
Mr. Ackerman wondered if selling the property and building a new shed on our 
Tremont lot would be a better solution.  Mr. Stanford stated that a cost of new 
building would far exceed the repairs of our current building.  Chairman Sinn 
stated he understands the County is land locked at the Tremont location due to 
the buildings already up.  Mr. Anderson stated it was difficult to pick a project 
since there are not many road projects that can be done for $20,000.  The 
committee ultimately gave the go ahead for the grant application. 
 
Mr. Anderson stated Excel Foundry has requested a name change in Shady Lane 
to “Excel Way.”  He stated Ms. Kristal Deininger, with Tazewell County 
Community Development, received the request and funneled it to the Highway 
Department.    He stated Mr. Steve Hullcranz, president of Municipal Addressing 
Services, Inc, is okay with the change.  Mr. Anderson added that the last property 
on the road was purchased by Excel, and thus, no address changes would be 
required for residences. 
 
MOTION BY STANFORD, SECOND BY PALMER to accept the request 
that all of what is currently known as Shady Lane in Cincinnati Township, be 
renamed Excel Way for the purposes of addressing and economic benefit, subject 
to the approval of the county board.  MOTION CARRIED on a voice vote. 
 
Mr. Anderson stated there were also a couple requests from Mr. Hullcranz 
regarding the official naming of two roads that have been unnamed thus far.  
Chairman Sinn stated we would inquire with residents prior to board night. 
 
MOTION BY STANFORD, SECOND BY PROEHL to accept the request to 
assign, for the first time, names for roads currently unnamed as Straub Lane and 
Scott’s Lane, maintained by Dillon Township, for the purposes of addressing and 
public safety, subject to the approval of the county board.  MOTION 
CARRIED on a voice vote. 
 
Chairman Sinn reminded the committee that next month will start the discussion 
of the County Engineer’s salary. 
 
Mr. Anderson pointed out the payment to Treasurer of State of Illinois from 
County Bridge funds for Veterans Road bridge.  He stated this is the first bill of 
the $1.4 million cost.  He stated the County owes approximately $300,000 and 
has only received $32,000 so far.  He stated the difference will have to be 
considered “carry-over” so it can be paid in the next fiscal year. 
 
MOTION BY STANFORD, SECOND BY DONAHUE to approve the bills as 
presented and recommend payment to the County Board. 
 
 
 



Approved 10/22/2012 
 

4 
 

 
 
TRANSPORTATION 
COMMITTEE 
_____________________ 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 

 
 
 
 
____________________________________________________________ 
  
Chairman Sinn adjourned the meeting at 8:44 A.M.  The next regularly 
scheduled meeting of the Transportation Committee will be held on Monday, 
September 17, 2012, at 8:00 A.M. 
 
 
 

 


